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Speech of the Chairman

Dear Valued Customers, Shareholders, Business Partners and Stakeholders,

2075/76 was a fruitful year in which we recorded stable growth and invested in numerous proactive efforts to
address segment challenges against the backdrop of a slowing economy.

As the company that always prioritizes services to the customers, we have committed to constantly innovate
to improve our skills and proficiency to provide high quality services, by doing business process efficiency and
expanding the use of digital technology into our business process to create insurance services that are in line
with the current condition. We also keep improving our e-commerce portal by adding more retail products so
the customers can easily get our insurance products. For us, it was indeed an outstanding achievement and
will be a motivation for NIC to serve better in the future.

It has been honour and pleasure to work as a Member of a Board that is committed to maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance. All of the Board's non-executive directors are independent and have
wide-ranging governance and executive experience, Our approach to effective governance is underpinned by
embedding a strong culture throughout the organization and ensuring that our risk management framework
evolves to reflect the changing business and regulatory environment.

In order to keep sustainable growth, the company will sharpen its penetration in the domestic market to
seize the opportunities in this country. To realize this, the company will carry a number of basic strategies, as
follows:

e Prudent underwriting process

e Stable cost management and return of investment

* Providing new attractive products to the Market

e Excellent claim services

e Digitalization and branding optimization

We are also in the midst of a significant refreshment of the Board of Directors, adding substantial additional
insurance and investment expertise.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express our highest appreciation and gratitude to all
of our valued customers, business partners and stakeholders for their continuous support and trust. To the
entire employees | also would like to convey sincere gratitude for the dedication and hard work.

Driving progress in F/Y 2076/077

This year, digitalization will be a central theme in our pursuit of becoming the leading and most trusted insurance
company of the country.

This year also provides an opportunity to thank all who have contributed to our continued growth and success
over the last 72 years. NIC could not have reached this important milestone without support of our customers
and shareholders, who everyday place their trust in NIC to deliver innovative financial solutions and long- term
returns. | would also like to express the Board's deep appreciation to NIC's employees, agents and partners -
past and present - for the focus and commitment that have NIC what it is today.

Thank you.

Arjun Poudel Sharma
Chairman

71* Annual Report 2075/076 7
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CEO's Commitment

Dear Stakeholders,

2075-76 was an unprecedented year for Nepal Insurance in terms of expansion, growth, efficiency and
profitability. Inan effort to reach and serve customers from every nook and corner of the country, we successfully
added 16 Branches across the nation during the year. Now the company has 49 branches encompassing all 7
provinces of the country. The company’s business will be expanded further by adding more branches, contact
offices and extension counters.

Despite of the entry of 3 new insurance companies in the market, we have been able to secure 34% growth in
gross premium collection. We today have 170,000 happy clients trusting us. We expanded relationships with
existing clients and gained new clients with the brilliant effort of our committed employees. We are a young
team, where more than 46% of the total employees of the company are aged below 30 years. More than 50% of
the employees in this slab are below 26 years of age. We plan to train the future of our company. In this regard
the company has conducted 90 plus trainings during the year.

As a result, we have succeeded in achieving an astonishing 152% growth in the net profit of the company. The
company’s EPS has increased from 13.32 to 29.77 i.e. an increase of 123 %.

Our performance in regards to number of claims settled during the year has increased by 42% in comparison
to previous year. Major credit of this goes to our Claims department. Increasing the efficiency of our employees
will be our priority in the coming years.

We have entered into bancassurance agreements with 12 Banks during the year. We plan to further strengthen
our relation with these Institutions and their customers. We aim to increase these numbers in the coming years.

We are very happy with what we have achieved till date and moreover very excited with the direction in which
the company is moving.

We dream to make Nepal's first insurance company the most trusted insurance company. In this pursuance,
we plan to enhance capacity of our employees through extensive trainings. We intent to make the whole
process of underwriting, payment and claim for our valued customers convenient through increased physical
and technological access.

Corporate governance, Compliance, Transparency and enhancement of Company’s reputation remains our
priority. Our team is always focused on increasing shareholders value. This is the path we've chosen.

On an ending note, I would like to thank you all for your presence in our 71¢'annual general meeting. As always,
| expect constructive suggestions and support from you all.

Thank you !

Vijaya B. Shah

Chief Executive Officer

71t Annual Report 2075/076
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
NEPAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OPINION

We have audited the Financial Statements of Nepal Insurance Company Limited (the Company), which comprise the Statement of
Financial Position as at Ashadh 31, 2076 (July 16, 2019), and the Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and Notes to the Financial
Statements, including a Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.

Inour opinion the accompanying Financial Statements, read together with Notes to Accounts present fairly, in all material respects
the financial position of the Company as at 31 Ashadh, 2076 (16 July 2019), and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the audit of Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal's (ICAN) Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal and we have
fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

RESPONSIBILITY OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance
is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

e  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management.

771t Annual Report 2075/076

1



Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entity or business activities within
the company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We have communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identified during our audit.

We also provided those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we have determined those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements, are
disclosed in the Notes.

REPORT ON THE OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

a.

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 8 January 2020 ex
UDIN: 200114CAQ0052EIXT \ G

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit;

The financial statements including the Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss, Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows read together with the Significant
Accounting Policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the accounts and
records of the Company are maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit, we observed that the
business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions were found to be within the scope of
its authority.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, read together with information disclosed in
Notes to the Financial Statements, we did not come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board
of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or
damage to the Company or committed any misappropriation of the funds of the Company.

74 [
CA Prakash Jung Thapa |

Managing Partner \\L«)
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Financial Position
As at Asadh End, 2076

Amountin NPR

Particulars Notes 2075/76 2074/75
Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5.1.1 80,897,868 45,721,177
Intangible Assets 5.1.2 1,094,125 485,167
Deferred Tax Assets 5.2 30,069,060 17,711,934
Financial assets 5.3 1,970,008,240 1,612,811,358
Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 53.1 1,515,382,268 1,225,505,274
Financial Investments at FVYTOCI 53.2 454,625,972 387,306,084
Financial Investments at FVTPL = -
Deferred Expenses 5.4 16,160,697 11,124,418
Other Assets 5.5 119,617,503 143,530,516
Reinsurance Assets 5.6 1,324,035,270 784,131,847
Reinsurance Receivables 5.7 337,287,013 363,598,637
Income Tax Receivable 5.8 - 24,951,870
Cash and Cash Equivalent 5.9 394,299,064 229.514,848
Total assets 4,273,468,840 3,233,581,773
Equity and Liabilities
Share Capital 5.10 1,019,103,863 617,638,705
Share Premium 38,479,349 51,140,387
Insurance Fund 5.11 297,668,239 195,210,466
Catastrophe Reserve 22,281,608 11,657,603
Other Reserve and Retained Earnings 512 335,228,702 213,882,812
Total Ordinary Shareholders’ Equity 1,712,761,761 1,089,529,972
Liabilities
Deferred Tax Liability 5.2 = -
Insurance Contract Liabilities 5.13 1,966,933,742 1,414,770,292
Employee Benefit Obligation 5.14 118,600,970 105,548,567
Deferred Revenue 5.15 74,298,311 45,977,596
Reinsurance Payables 5.16 223,492,596 443,336,240
Other Payables 5.17 162,461,748 124,499,393
Other Provisions 5.18 14,919,713 9,919,713
Total Liabilities 2,560,707,079 2,144,051,801
Total Equity and Liabilities 4,273,468,840 3,233,581,773

As per our report of even date

Vijaya Bahadur Shah, FCA Arjun Poudel Sharma Romal Krishna Shrestha Prakash Jung Thapa, FCA
Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner

Umesh Awasthi, CA Diwakar Paudel Bishnu Khetan Agrawal P. J. Thapa & Co.
: : Chartered Accountants
Senior Manager Director Director

Laxman Paudel Bishnu Bahadur G.C.
Director Director

Ramhari Neupane
Independent Director

771t Annual Report 2075/076 13



Nepal Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: 08/01/2020
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended 31st Asadh, 2076

Amountin NPR

Particulars Notes 2075/76 2074/75
Gross premium 6.1.1 1178 992313 878,727,590
Premium ceded to reinsurers 6.1.2 (637,712,197 (430,829,461)
Net premium 541,280,115 447,898,129
Fees and commission income 6.2 151,901,215 105,415,383
Investment income 6.3 155,697,711 104,073,551
Net realised gains and losses 6.4 5,804,616 246,238
Other income 6.5 16,629,030 5,923,998
Total revenue 871,312,688 663,557,300
Gross benefits and claims paid 6.6 a) [708,670,885) (424,839,276)
Claims ceded to reinsurers 6.6 (b) 479,800,438 233,111,337
Net benefits and claims (228,870,448) (191,727,940]
Net change in insurance contract liabilities 6.7 (12,260,028) (145,089,364]
Other operating and administrative expenses 6.8 (286,939,734) (179,743,008)
Other expenses 6.9 (29,868,630 (23,611,735
Provisions 5.10 (4,789,275) (750)
Share Related Expenses 6.10.1 (2,481,517) (3,085,509)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (565,209,631) (543,258,305)
Profit before tax 306,103,057 120,298,995
Income Tax Expenses 6.11 (89,488,778 (34,337,015)
Profit for the year 216,614,279 85,961,979
Earnings per share

Basic EPS 29.77 13.32
Diluted EPS 29.77 13.32
Basic EPS [Restated) 8.37

As per our report of even date

Vijaya Bahadur Shah, FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Umesh Awasthi, CA
Senior Manager

Arjun Poudel Sharma

Chairman

Diwakar Paudel

Director

Laxman Paudel

Director

Romal Krishna Shrestha
Director

Bishnu Khetan Agrawal
Director

Bishnu Bahadur G.C.
Director

Ramhari Neupane
Independent Director

Prakash Jung Thapa, FCA
Partner

P. J. Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

Date: 08/01/2020
Kathmandu, Nepal
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Statement of Cash Flow
For the Year Ended 31st Asadh, 2076

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Cash flow from operating activities

Cash Received

Net premium income 541,280,115 447,898,129
Fee and Commission income 151,901,215 105,415,383
Investment Income 155,697,711 104,073,551
Net realized gains and losses 5,804,616 246,238
Other income 16,629,030 5,923,998
Cash Paid

Net Claim Paid (228,870,448) [191,727,940)
Other operating and administrative expenses (286,939,734) (179,743,008)
Other expenses (29,868,630] (23,611,735)
Income tax (101,845,903) [47,555,092)
Adjustment

Deferred Reinsurance commission income 28,320,715 7,440,288
Deferred Expenses (5,036,279) (1,446,994)
Depreciation 11,598,645 4,223,579
Change in insurance contract liabilities 552,163,451 333,435,104
(Increase)/Decrease of Current Assets

(Increase)/Decrease in Financial Assets (1,594,322) (326,505,514)
(Increase)/Decrease in Reinsurance Asset (539,903,422) (188,345,740]
(Increase)/Decrease in Others Assets 23,913,013 (46,483,728]
Increase/(Decrease) of Current Liabilities

Increase/[Decrease] in Financial Liabilities (206,791,242) 276,395,043
Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities 42,962,354 29,668,038
Net cash flow from operating activities(A) 129,420,885 309,299,602
Cash flow from investing activities

(Increase)/Decrease in Fixed Assets (46,775,336) (19,408,352
(Increase)/Decrease in Intangible Assets (608,958) [260,607)
l[Lnsci?'teuai_‘soer]W/SDecrease in Investment in Fixed Deposit of Banks &Financial (289.876.994) (544,467, 464)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investment in Equity Share [67,319,888) (21,297,070)
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (404,581,176) (585,433,493)
Cash Flow on Financing Activities

Interest Expense - -
Dividend Paid (1,475,890
Issue of Share Capital 439 944,507 353,128,997
Net cash flow from financing activities(C) 439,944,507 351,653,107
Change in Exchange rate in Cash and Bank Balances

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 164,784,216 75,519,216
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (D) 229,514,847 153,995,631
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (A+B+C+D) 394,299,064 229,514,847

Vijaya Bahadur Shah, FCA
Chief Executive Officer

Umesh Awasthi, CA
Senior Manager

Arjun Poudel Sharma

Chairman Director

Diwakar Paudel

Director Director

Laxman Paudel

Director Director

Ramhari Neupane
Independent Director

Romal Krishna Shrestha

Bishnu Khetan Agrawal

Bishnu Bahadur G.C.

As per our report of even date

Prakash Jung Thapa, FCA

Partner

P. J. Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss

Date: 08/01/2020
Kathmandu, Nepal

Statemen of Other Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 31st Asadh, 2076

Amount in NPR

Particulars Notes 2075/76 2074/75
Profit for the Year 216,614,279 85,961,979
Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Items that will not be reclassified to profiit or loss

Net gain on Financial Assets (46,282,262 (9,904,047)
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) (1.327,737) 2,717,659
Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified 14,283,000 2,155,916
OCI for the year, net of tax (33,326,999) (5,030,472)
Total OCI for the year, net of tax 183,287,280 80,931,508

As per our report of even date

Vijaya Bahadur Shah, FCA Arjun Poudel Sharma Romal Krishna Shrestha Prakash Jung Thapa, FCA

Chief Executive Officer Chairman Director Partner
P. J. Thapa & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Umesh Awasthi, CA Diwakar Paudel Bishnu Khetan Agrawal
Senior Manager Director Director
Laxman Paudel Bishnu Bahadur G.C.
Director Director

Ramhari Neupane
Independent Director
Date: 08/01/2020
Kathmandu, Nepal
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2.1

Nepal Insurance Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Notes to Financial Statements and Significant Accounting Policies
For the Year Ended 31st Asadh, 2076

General Information

Nepal Insurance Company Limited (herein after referred to as the ‘Company’ or ‘NIC’) was established
on 1947 A.D. by Nepal Bank Limited [the first commercial Bank] and the general public with 51% and
49% shares respectively. In the beginning, the name of this company was "Nepal Malchalani Tatha
Beema Company” and had changed its name as "Nepal Insurance & Transport Company Ltd.” on 1959
A.D. Now its name is "Nepal Insurance Company Ltd." since 1991 A.D. The company was incorporated
on 2051-09-06 under the Company Act 2021 [currently Company Act 2063) and operated as general
insurance company after obtaining license on 2053-02-17 under the insurance act 2049.

Theregistered office of the Company is located at Kamaladi, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Insurance Company
is listed in Nepal Stock Exchange Limited (the sole stock exchange in Nepal) for public trading.

The financial statements for the year ended on 16 July 2019 [Asadh 31, 2076] have been approved by the
Board of Directors on 23.09.2076. The management acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation
and fair presentation of these fiscal statements in accordance with NFRS.

The principal activities of the Company are described in Note 4. Information of the Company’s structure
is also provided in Note 4. Information on other related party relationships of the company is provided
in Note 7.5.

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial
Reporting Standards (NFRS), as prepared by the Accounting Standards Board of Nepal and issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal.

The financial statements have been prepared on an histarical cost basis, except for investment
properties and financial assets and derivative instruments that have been measured at fair value.

The financial statements provide comparative information in respect of the previous period. In addition,
the company presents an additional statement of financial position at the beginning of the earliest
period presented when there is a retrospective application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement, or a reclassification of items in financial statements.

The company presents its statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within twelve months after the reporting date [no more than 12
months) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (more than 12 months] is presented in the
respective notes.

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements were prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Nepal
Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS] along with the approved carve-outs issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Nepal on September 20, 2018 on NFRS requirement, which allowed
alternative treatments and the Company adopted following carve outs:

NAS 39: Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,

e Impairment accounting,
° Calculation of interest income as per offective interest rate

71 Annual Rgsgw%%%%nterest income on amortized cost

Historical cost convention was used for financial statement recognition and measurement except



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

otherwise required by NFRS. Where, other method(s), other than historical costs, such as fair value has
been applied, and these have been disclosed in accordance with the applicable reporting framework.

The adoption of NFRS for preparation of financial statements was brought in effect from fiscal year
2074/75.

Functional and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupees [NPR] which is the Company’s functional
currency. All financial information presented in NPR has been rounded to the nearest rupee except
where indicated otherwise.

Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements. The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of
Financial Statements of the Company as per Nepal Financial Reporting Standards [NFRS]. The
approval of financial statements along with notes to the financial statements have been adopted by the
Board of Directors in its’ 13" meeting held on 2076.09.23. The approved financial statements have been
recommended for approval by the shareholders in the 71th annual general meeting of the Company
subseguent to receipt of requlatory approval from Beema Samiti.

Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgements

The Company, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its
circumstances and operating environment. Further, the Company is required to make judgments in
respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed
could materially affect the financial statements. This may later be determined that a different choice
could have been more appropriate.

The accounting policies have beenincluded in the relevant notes for each item of the financial statements
and the effect and nature of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

The NFRS requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets,
liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial
statements. The Company applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements
and such estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed periodically. The revision to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the relevant sections of the notes
wherever the estimates have been applied along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting
estimates, if any.

Going Concern

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, as the Board of the Company is
satisfied that the Company has the resources to continue the business for the foreseeable future. In
making this assessment, the Board of Directors have considered a wide range of information relating
to present and future conditions, including future projections of profitability, cash flows and capital
resources. Furthermore, Board is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt upon Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and they do not intend either to liquidate
or to cease operations of it.
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2.6

2.7

Changes in Accounting Policies

Accounting policies are the specific principles, bases, conventions, rules and practices applied by the
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements. The Company is permitted to change
an accounting policy only if the change is required by a standard or interpretation; or results in the
financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information about the effects of transactions,
other events or conditions on the entity’s financial position, financial performance, or cash flows. The
Company uses the same accounting policies throughout all periods presented in its NFRS financial
statements.

New Standards in issue by IASB but yet to be adopted by ASB

A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have
been issued by IASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become
applicable when ASB Nepal incorporates them within NFRS.

Standards issued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the financial statements are set out
below. The Company will adopt these standards when they are adopted by ASB.

NFRS 9- Financial Instruments

NFRS 9 states a logical principle base to classify financial assets and financial liabilities which is driven
by cash flow characteristics and the business model in which an assets or liability is held. Further this
standard recommends the assessment of impairment based on more timely recognition of incurred
losses as referred in NAS 39 and entities are required to account for incurred credit losses from the
initial recognition of financial instruments. Currently, Incurred Loss Model as specified in NAS 39 is
used. The requirement of IFRS 7 is Expected Credit Loss Model.

IFRS 9 became effective on 1 January 2018 and will have an effect on classification and measurement of
the Company’s financial assets. NFRS 9, as issued reflects the first phase of work on replacement NAS
39 and applies to classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities. NRFS 9 has been
complied for the classification of Financial Instruments.

IFRS-15: Revenue from Contract with Customers

The IASBissued a new standard for revenue recognition which overhauls the existing revenue recognition
standards. The standard requires the following five step model framework to be followed for revenue
recognition:

1. Identification of the contracts with the customer

2. ldentification of the performance obligations in the contract

3. Determination of the transaction price

4. Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract (as identified in step b)
5. Recognition of revenue when the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

The new standard would be effective for annual periods starting from 1 January 2018 and early application
is allowed internationally, ASB Nepal is yet to adopt the standard. The management is assessing the
potential impact on its financial statements resulting from application of IFRS 15.

IFRS 17- Insurance Contracts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts was issued by the IASB on 18 May 2017 and has a mandatory effective date of
annual periods beginning on or after T January 2022. It supersedes IFRS 4 Insurance Contract. IFRS 17 with
corresponding effective date has not been endorsed by Accounting Standard Board [ASB] of Nepal yet. The

management is still assessing the potential impact on its financial statements, if IFRS 17 is applied in future.
[
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2.8

2.9

3.
3.1

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 "Leases’ is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 internationally
but is yet to be adopted by ASB Nepal. IFRS 16 is the new accounting standard for leases and will
replace IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and IFRIC 4 'Determining whether an arrangement contains a Lease’. The
new standard removes the distinction between operating or finance leases for lessee accounting,
resulting in all leases being treated as finance leases. All leases will be recognised on the statement
of financial position with the optional exceptions for short-term leases with a lease term of less than
12 Months and leases of low-value assets (for example mobile phanes or laptops). A lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The main reason for this change is that this
approach will result in a more comparable representation of a lessee’s assets and liabilities in relation
to other companies and, together with enhanced disclosures, will provide greater transparency of a
lessee’s financial leverage and capital employed. The standard permits a lessee to choose either a full
retrospective or a modified retrospective transition approach.

Discounting

When the realization of assets and settlement of obligation is for more than one year, the Company
considers the discounting of such assets and liabilities where the impact is material. Various internal
and external factors have been considered for determining the discount rate to be applied to the cash
flows of company.

Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current, and the impact of the
discounting is material.

Limitation of NFRS Implementation

Wherever the information is not adequately available, and/or it is impracticable to develop the, such
exception to NFRS implementation has been noted and disclosed in respective sections.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to Financial Statements
Property, Plant and Equipment

Basis of Recognition

Property, Plant and Equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Basis of Measurement

Property, plant and equipment is initially recorded at cost and subsequently measured at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, with the exception of land which
is not depreciated. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent Costs

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Repairs and Maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance

Repairs and Maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the assets
when it is probable that future economic benefits in excess of the most recently assessed standard of
performance of the existing assets will flow to the Company and the renovation replaces an identifiable
part of the asset. Major renovations are depreciated during the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated using the written down value method to allocate the cost of each asset to its
residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

Furniture, fixtures and fittings 10-15%
Computers 20%
Vehicles:
Jeep/Car 15%
Motorcycle 15%
Cycle 20%
Other Vehicles 15%
Office Equipment 15%
Building 7%

Depreciation methads, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate. The depreciation rates are determined separately for each significant part of an
item of Property, Plant & Equipment and commence to depreciate when it is available for use, i.e., when
it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
the management. Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified
as held for sale or the date that the asset is derecognized.

Carrying Value

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its estimated recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The residual values of assets
that are not insignificant are reassessed annually. Depreciation on revaluation of a class of assets is
based on the remaining useful life of the assets at the time of the revaluation.

De-recognition
An item of Property, Plant and Equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use. Gains and losses on disposal of property and equipment are
determined by reference to their carrying amount and are included in profit or loss.

When replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment, the remaining carrying amount of the replaced part is de - recognized. Major inspection
costs are capitalized. At each such capitalization the remaining carrying amount of the previous cost of
inspections is derecognized.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs incurred jfor the constructions of any qualifying asset are capitalized during the period
of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use. Other borrowing costs
are recognized in the profit or loss in the period in which they occur.
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3.2

Capital Work in Progress

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major Plant and
Machinery and system development which are to be capitalized. Capital Work in Progress would be
transferred to the relevant asset when it is available for use. Capital Work in Progress is stated at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible Assets

Basis of Recognition and Measurement

An Intangible Asset is recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to
the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development costs, are not
capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in statement of profit or loss in the year in which the
expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic
benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Useful Economic Life and Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.

Amortization is recognized in income statement on straight line method over the estimated useful life of
the intangible assets, from the date that it is available for use since this most closely reflects the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption
of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit or loss (other operating and
administrative expenses). Company does not have any intangible assets with indefinite useful life.

De-recognition

An Intangible Asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
it. The gain or loss, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, arising from the de -recognition of such Intangible Assets is included in the
Statement of Income Statement come when the item is derecognized.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required,
the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s or CGU's fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
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Repairs and Maintenance

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions
are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.
These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

Impairment Losses are Recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any
indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the asset’'s or CGU’s recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’'s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If
that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increased
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization,
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit or loss.

Taxes

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount
included in determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation.
Income Tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to
items recognized directly in equity or Other Comprehensive Income in which case it is recognized in
equity or in Other Comprehensive Income. The Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue Department in respect of the current year, using the tax
rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the reporting date and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of prior years.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity or OCl is recognized in equity or OCI
and not in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions, where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future
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Capital Work in Progress

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

* In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent

that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the

deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting
date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates [and tax laws] that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss.
Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for separate
recognition at that date, are recognized subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances
change. The adjustment is either treated as a reduction in goodwill (as long as it does not exceed
goodwill] if it was incurred during the measurement period or recognized in profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Recognition

The Company initially recognizes a Financial Asset or a Financial Liability in its Statement of Financial
Position when, and only when, it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The
Company initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits on the date that they are originated which is
the date that the Company becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments
in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, are recognized on trade date at which the Company commits
to purchase/ acquire the Financial Assets. Regular way purchase and sale of Financial Assets are
recognized on trade date at which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Classification

1. Financial Assets

The Company classifies the Financial Assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair

value on the basis of the Company's business model for managing the Financial Assets and the
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contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Assets.

contractual cash flow characteristics of the Financial Assets.
The Financial Assets are classified under two classes which are detailed as under;

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

The Company classifies a Financial Asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following
conditions are met:

. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and
. The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that

are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Asset Measured at Fair Value

Financial assets other than those measured at amortized cost are measured at fair value.
Financial assets measured at fair value are further classified into two categories as below:

* Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial assets are classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL] if they are held for
trading or are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction
cost is directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Such
assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss.

¢ Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income

Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading and at the initial recognition,
the Company makes an irrevocable election that the subsequent changes in fair value of the
instrument is to be recognized in other comprehensive income are classified as Financial Assets
at Fair Value Though Other Comprehensive Income. Such assets are subsequently measured at
fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as follows;

¢ Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or
are designated at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are
directly attributable to the acquisition are recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.
Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized at profit or loss

¢ Financial Liabilities Measured at Amortized Cost

All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as
subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest rate method.

C. Measurement

Initial Measurement

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an
itern not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. Transaction cost in relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value

26
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il Subsequent Measurement

Afinancial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized
cost based on the classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial asset or liability
classified as measured at amortized cost is subsequently measured at amortized cost using
effective interest rate method.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial
asset or financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or
minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest rate (EIR] method of any difference
between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or
un-collectability. However, the Company has opted to apply carve-out and measure the financial
assets and liabilities at carrying amount.

Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent
changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in
Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognized in other comprehensive income.

De-recognition

De-recognition of Financial Assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

On de-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset [ or
the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred] and the consideration received
lincluding any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed] shall be recognized in profit and loss
account.

In transactions in which the Company neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Company continues
to recognize the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is
exposed to changes in the value of the transferred asset.

De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The company has not offset any of its financial assets with financial liabilities as at 16 July 2019. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount are reported in the statement of financial
position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction on the measurement date. The fair value
of a liability reflects its non-performance risk

The fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted
prices for identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using
models where all significant inputs are observable.

Level 3 portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effect on the
instrument’s valuation, is not based on observable market data.

When available, the Company measures the fair value of an instrument using quoted prices in an active
market for that instrument. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available and represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received. However, in some cases, the fair value
of a financial instrument on initial recognition may be different to its transaction price. If such fair
value is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same
instrument (without modification) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data
from observable markets, then the difference is recognized in profit or loss on initial recognition of
the instrument. In other cases, the difference is not recognized in profit or loss immediately but is
recognized over the life of the instrument on an appropriate basis or when the instrument is redeemed,
transferred or sold, or the fair value becomes observable.

All unquoted equity investments are recorded at book value per share.

Impairment

At each reporting date the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may have
been impaired. If such indication exists, the recoverable amount is determined. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events occurring after the initial recognition of the
asset (a loss event), and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

The Company considers the following factors in assessing objective evidence of impairment:

*  Whether the counterparty is in default of principal or interest payments.

e When a counterparty files for bankruptcy and this would avoid or delay discharge of its obligation.

e Where the Company initiates legal recourse of recovery in respect of a credit obligation of the
counterpart.

e Where the Company consents to a restructuring of the obligation, resulting in a diminished
financial obligation, demonstrated by a material forgiveness of debt or postponement of scheduled
payments.

e Where there is observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows of a group of financial assets, although the decrease cannot yet be identified with
specific individual financial assets.

The Company considers evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

securities at both a specific asset and collective level. Allindividually significant loans and advances and
held-to-maturity investment securities are assessed for specific impairment. Those found not to be
specifically impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not
yet identified.

Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities with similar risk characteristics. Impairment test is done on annual basis for
trade receivables and other financial assets based on the internal and external indication observed.

Impairment Losses on Assets Measured at Amortized Cost

Financial assets carried at amortized cost [such as amounts due from Company, loans and advances to
customers as well as held-to-maturity investments is impaired, and impairment losses are recognized,
only if there is objective evidence as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset. The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the deemed recoverable value of loan.

Deferred Expenses

Deferred expenses are those expense which are deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion to the risk
assumed in each policy in relation to policy period. These expenses include agent commission expenses
and Reinsurance commission expense of the company.

Reinsurance Assets

Reinsurance assets are the assets which are created against insurance contract liabilities of the amount
which are recoverable from the Reinsurers. These assets are created for the Reinsurer’s share of
Unexpired Risk Reserve and Outstanding Claims as per the reinsurance treaty entered by the company.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at banks and in hand
and short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value.

Share Capital

The Company has issued ordinary shares that are classified as equity instruments. Shares are classified
as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Equity is defined as residual
interest in total assets of the Company after deducting all its liabilities. Common shares are classified
as equity of the Company and distributions thereon are presented in statement of changes in equity.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognized in equity in the period in which they are passed by AGM.

Insurance Fund

The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 50% of the net profit every year as
per Regulator’'s Directive on net profit derived as per Special Purpose Financial Statement.

Catastrophe Reserve

The Company has allocated insurance fund for the amount which is 10% of the distributable profit
for the year per Regulator’'s Directive on distributable profit derived as per Special Purpose Financial
Statement.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

Fair Value Reserve

The Company has policy of creating fair value reserve equal to the amount of Fair Value Gain recognized
in statement of other comprehensive income as per requlator’s directive.

Deferred Tax Reserve

The Company has policy of creating deferred tax reserve equal to the amount of the deferred tax assets
appearing in its” as per regulator’s directive.

Insurance Contract Liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding claims provision, the provision for unearned
premium and the provision for premium deficiency. The outstanding claims provision is based on the
estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date, whether reported
or not, together with related survey fees and expenses. Delays can be experienced in the notification
and settlement of certain types of claims. Therefore, the ultimate cost of these cannot be known with
certainty at the reporting date. The liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range of standard
actuarial claim projection techniques, based on empirical data and current assumptions that may
include a margin for adverse deviation. The liability is not discounted for the time value of money. No
provision for equalization or catastrophe reserves is recognized. The liabilities are derecognized when
the obligation to pay a claim expires, is discharged or is cancelled.

The provision for unearned premiums represents that portion of premiums received or receivable
that relates to risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date. The provision is recognized when
contracts are entered into and premiums are charged, and is brought to account as premium income
over the term of the contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance service provided under the
contract,

Employees Benefit

Short Term Employee Benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as
the related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit
sharing plans, required by the Bonus Act, 2030, if the Company has present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can
be estimated reliably.

Short-term employee benefits include all the following items (if payable within 12 months after the end
of the reporting period):

. wages, salaries and social security contributions,
. paid annual leave and paid sick leave,

. profit-sharing and bonuses and

. non-monetary benefits

Post-Employment Benefits

Post-employment benefit plan includes the followings:

i Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating
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to employee services in the current and prior periods, as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards
- NAS 19 [Employee Benefits).

The obligations for contributions payable by the employer to defined contribution plans are
recognized as personnel expenses in profit or loss in the periods during which related services
are rendered. Unpaid contributions are recorded as a liability under "Other Liabilities’. The
contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present
value.

All employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the provident fund, a defined
contribution plan, in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a pre-
determined rate of 10% of the basic salary which are identified as contributions to ‘Defined
Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
The Company does not assume any future liability for provident fund benefits other than its
annual contribution.

Defined Benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
Accordingly, staff gratuity and leave encashment has been considered as defined benefit plans
as per Nepal Accounting Standards - NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

a. Gratuity

In compliance with Labor Act, 2074, provision is made in the account year of service, for gratuity
payable to employees who joined Company on a permanent basis. An actuarial valuation is
carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

NIC’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and
discounting that benefit to determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan
assets to determine the net amount to be shown in the Statement of Financial Position. The value
of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any economic benefits available in
the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the plan. In order to
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirement that apply to any plan in Company. An economic benefit is available to Company if it
is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

The Company recognizes gains and losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs. The gain or loss on curtailment or settlement
comprises any resulting change in the fair value of plan assets, any change in the present value
of the defined benefit obligation, any related actuarial gains and losses and any past service cost
that had not previously been recognized.

Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the
defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at
the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of
Company’s obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the
year ended 16th July, 2019 (current service cost] has been recognized in the Statement of Profit
or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ together with the net interest expense. Company recognizes

the total actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating Company's obligation in respect of
a c
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3.15

3.16

gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early
withdrawal from service and retirement on medical grounds.

b. Unutilized Accumulated Leave

NIC’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year
from the end of the reporting period is treated as other Long-term employee benefits. NIC's
net obligation towards unutilized accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate is the yield at the
reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of
Company’s obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Net
change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain and loss are
recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the period in which
they arise.

¢. Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are recognized as an expense when the Company is demonstrably
committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either
terminate employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as
a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary
redundancies are recognized as an expense if the Company has made an offer of voluntary
redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can
be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then
they are discounted to their present value.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue includes those revenue which are deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion to the
risk assumed in each policy in relation to policy period. This revenue include reinsurance commission
income earned by the company.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company have a present obligation (legal or constructive] as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement
is recognized as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

In the case of onerous contracts, a provision is recognized in which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The
unavoidable costs reflect the least net cost of exiting the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it.

Adisclosure for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may
but probably will not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
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Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision
is reversed. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. However, contingent
assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise,
the asset and related income are recognized in the period in which the change occurs.

3.17 Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement at the inception date and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a
right to use the asset [or assets), even if that asset is (or those assets are) not explicitly specified in an
arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease, which are explained
as under:

3.17.1 Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the
ownership of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When Company is
the lessor under finance lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned interest
income, are included in ‘Loans to & receivables from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest income
receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest income’ aver the periods of the leases so as to give a constant
rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

When Company is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized and included in
‘Property, plant and equipment’ and the corresponding liability to the lessor is included in ‘Other
liabilities’. A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair value of
the asset or if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance charges payable are
recognized in ‘Interest expenses’ over the period of the lease based on the interest rate implicit in the
lease so as to give a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

The company does not have any finance lease arrangements in its books for the FY 2074-75.

3.17.2 Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. Leases that do not transfer substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership of an asset to the Company are classified as operating leases. Operating
lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

When acting as lessor, Company includes the assets subject to operating leases in "Property, plant and
equipment” and accounts for them accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that
residual values are not fully recoverable and the carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired. When
Company is the lessee, leased assets are not recognized on the Statement of Financial Position.

The lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term unless either:

a. Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the user’s benefit even if
the payments to the lessors are not on that basis;
OR
a c
b. The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate forthetessor s expected-mitatiomary costmereasesHpayments tothetessorvary
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3.18

3.19

3.20

because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

because of factors other than general inflation, then this condition is not met.

In the FY 2075-76, the company has applied straight line basis of accounting to account for
rentals payable under operating leases.

Segment Reporting

Under NFRS 8 ‘Operating Segments’, the Company needs to determine and present operating segments
based on different types of insurance contracts issued by the company.

Based on the operating segments identified, the Company has classified and disclosed segmental
information separately. The businesses are segmented into Fire Insurance, Marine Insurance,
Engineering Insurance, Cattle and crop Insurance and Miscellaneous Insurance. There are no reportable
geographical segments, since all business is operating in Nepal. The allocation and apportionment of
revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities to specific segments is done in the following manner, which is
applied on a consistent basis.

Revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities that are directly identifiable to the segment are allocated on
actual basis;

Other revenue, expenses (including depreciation and amortization), assets and liabilities that are not
directly identifiable to a segment are apportioned based of weightage as prescribed by the Beema
Samiti.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR]) which is also the
company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s entities at their functional
currency spot rate prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rate of
exchange at the reporting date.

Alldifferences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to the statement of profit
or loss with the exception of differences on foreign monetary items that form part of a net investment in
a foreign operation. These are recognized in OCl until the disposal of the net investment, at which time
they are reclassified to profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange differences on
these monetary items are also recorded in OCI.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate as at the date of the initial transaction and are not subsequently restated. Non-
monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of a gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item [i.e., translation differences on items whaose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI
or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Revenue Recognition

3.20.1 Gross Premium

Gross written premiums comprise the total premiums received/receivable for the whole period of cover
provided by contracts entered into during the accounting period. Gross premium is recognized on the
date on which the policy is effective. Premiums include any adjustments arising in the reporting period
for premiums receivable in respect of business written in prior accounting periods. Rebates that form
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part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross written premium;

part of the premium rate, such as no-claim rebates, are deducted from the gross written premium;
others are recognized as an expense.

Unearned Premiums Reserve

Unearned premiums represent the proportion of the premiums written in periods up to the accounting
date that relates to the unexpired terms of policies in force at the reporting date. Unearned premiums
are calculated on a daily pro rata basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred
as a provision for unearned premiums.

3.20.2 Refund Premium

Premium refunded during the review period are deducted [set off] from the gross premium received.

3.20.3 Reinsurance Premium

Reinsurance premiums written comprise the total premiums payable for the whole cover provided by
contracts entered into the period and are recognized on the date on which the policy incepts. Premiums
include any adjustments arising in the accounting period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting
in prior accounting periods.

Unearned reinsurance premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to
periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned reinsurance premiums are deferred over the term
of the underlying direct insurance policies for risks- attaching contracts and over the term of the
reinsurance contract for losses occurring contracts.

Reinsurance premiums and claims on the face of the statement of profit or loss have been presented
as negative items within premiums and net benefits and claims, respectively, because this is consistent
with how the business is managed.

3.20.4 Provisions For Unpaid Claims and Adjustment Expenses

Individual loss estimates are provided on each claim reported. In addition, provisions are made for
adjustment expenses, changes in reported claims. The estimates are regularly reviewed and updated,
and any resulting adjustments are included in current income. Claim liabilities are carried on an
undiscounted basis.

3.20.5 Reinsurer’s Share of Unearned Premium

The reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums are recognized as an assets using principles consistent
with the company’s method for determining the unearned premium liability.

3.20.6 Reinsurer’s Share of Provisions for Unpaid Claims and Adjustment Expenses

The company enters into reinsurance contracts in the normal course of business in order to limit
potential losses arising from certain exposures. Reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the
same period as the related premiums for the direct insurance business being reinsured. Reinsurance
liabilities, comprised of premiums payable for the purchase of reinsurance contracts, are included in
accounts payable and accrued liabilities and are recognized as an expense when due.

Expected reinsurance recoveries on unpaid claims and adjustment expenses are recognized as assets
at the same time and using principles consistent with the company’'s methods for establishing the
related liability.

3.20.7 Fees and Commission Income

a o
Insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration services,
investment management services_surrenders and other contract fees Thege fees are recognized a5
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revenue over the period in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided

revenue over the period in which the related services are performed. If the fees are for services provided
in future periods, then they are deferred and recognized over those future periods.

3.20.8 Investment Income

Interest income is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues. Investment income also
includes dividends when the right to receive payment is established.

Realized Gains and Losses

Realized gains and losses recorded in the statement of profit or loss include gains and losses on financial
assets and properties. Gains and losses on the sale of investments are calculated as the difference
between net sales proceeds and the original or amartized cost and are recorded on occurrence of the
sale transaction.

3.21 Benefits, Claims and Expenses Recognition

General insurance and health claims include all claims occurring during the year, whether reported or
not, related internal and external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and
settlement of claims, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to
claims outstanding from previous years.

3.22 Finance Costs

Interest paid is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as it accrues and is calculated by using
the EIR method. Accrued interest is included within the carrying value of the interest bearing financial
liability.

3.23 Earnings per Share Including Diluted Earnings

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share [EPS) data for its ordinary shares. The
basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted
EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4. Company’s Structure and Products
a. Shareholding Structure of the Company

2075/76 2074/75
Share holder

No. of Equity Share % No. of Equity Share %
Nepali Organized 4,596,344 45 2,785,663 45

p Institutions

romoter o
Group Nepali Citizen 587,917 6 356,314 6
Foreigner - - - -
Total 5,184,263 ol 3,141,977 51
General Public Group 5,006,775 49 3,034,410 49
Others - - - -
Total 10,191,038 100 6,176,387 100
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Details of Shareholders Holding 1% or More of Total Shares of the Company

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75

% Amount % Amount
Nepal Bank Ltd. 15 152,865,500 15 92,645,781
United Distributors 6.95 70,867,500 6.95 42,950,007
Word wide Investment 522 53,150,600 5.22 32,212,505
IME 5122 53,150,600 5.22 32,212,505
IME Investment 5.22 53,150,600 5.22 32,212,505
Mr. Bhoj Raj Joshi (P) 442 45,000,900 4.42 27,273,254
Life Care 3.48 35,433,800 3.48 21,475,003
Mega Bank Ltd 202 21616600 2.12 13,100,900
Prudential Capital 1.74 17,716,900 1.74 10,737,502
Mr. Bhoj Raj Joshi 0.95 9,666,400 2.84 17,538,151
Mr. Bhagwat Krishna Shrestha 0.67 6,857,700 1.08 6,665,276
Chartered Capital 0.59 6,031,700 1.04 6,431,564
Product Classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer significant insurance risk. Such contracts may
also transfer financial risk. As a general guideline, the Company defines as significant insurance risk,
the possibility of having to pay benefits on the occurrence of an insured event.

General insurance business means insurance business of any class or classes not being long term
insurance business.

NIC

has following portfolios under which it operates its” business:

Fire Portfolio - Fire insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out contracts
of insurance, otherwise than incidental to some other class of insurance business against loss
or damage to property due to fire, explosion, storm and other occurrences customarily included
among the risks insured against in the fire insurance business.
Motor Portfolio -Motor insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of, or damage to, or arising out of or in connection with the use
of, motor vehicles, inclusive of third party risks but exclusive of transit risks.
Marine Portfolio -Marine insurance business means the business of affecting and carrying out
contracts of insurance against loss of consignment of goods during transit.
Engineering Portfolio - Engineering insurance business means the insurance that provides
economic safeguard to the risks faced by the ongoing construction project, installation project, and
machines and equipment in project operation.
Product categories: Depending on the project, it can be divided into construction project all risks
insurance and installation project all risks insurance; depending on the attribute of the object, it
can be divided into project all risks insurance, and machinery breakdown insurance.
Micro Portfolio -Micro Insurance protects against loss of or damage to crops or livestock. It has
great potential to provide value to low-income farmers and their communities, both by protecting
farmers when shocks occur and by encouraging greater investment in crops.
Aviation Portfolio - Aviation Insurance provides coverage for hull losses as well as liability for
passenger injuries, environmental and third-party damage caused by aircraft accidents.
Miscellaneous Portfolio - All the insurance business which doesn't fall in above categories
fall underMiscellaneous insurance business. Group Personal Accidents,Medical Insurances,
Professional indemnity insurance etc. fall under this category of business.

c
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5.1.2. Intangible Assets and Amortization

Amount in NPR

PARTICULARS Software Total
Cost:

At 31st Asar, 2074 2,238,425 2,238,425
Additions 370,000 370,000
Disposals - -
At 32nd Asar, 2075 2,608,425 2,608,425
Additions 845,000 845,000
Disposals = -
At 31st Asar, 2076 3,453,425 3,453,425
Amortization:

At 31st Asar, 2074 2,013,865 2,013,865
Amortization on addition 109,393 109,393
Amortization on deletion - -
At 32nd Asar, 2075 2,123,258 2,123,258
Amaortization on addition 236,042 236,042
Amortization on deletion - -
At 31st Asar, 2076 2,359,300 2,359,300
Balance as on 32.03.2075 485,167 485,167
Balance as on 32.03.207é 1,094,125 1,094,125
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5.2 Deferred Tax on Restatement

Deferred Tax recognized in PL (2074-75)

Amount in NPR

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base  Assets/[Liabilities)
Agent Commssion Expense - Deferred 10,597,954 - (10,597,954)
RI Premium Expense - Deferred 526,464 - (526,464)
RI Commission Income - Deferred 45,977,596 - 45,977,596
Unexpired Risk Reserve 244,296,826 244,296,826 -
Outstanding Claims and IBNR 386,341,619 324,901,756 61,439,863
Employee Benefits - Gratuity and Leave 74,206,107 - 74,206,107
Provision for Investment/Assets 10,500,285 - 10,500,285
Property, Plant and Equipment 46,206,344 41,624,821 (4,581,523
Incentive 9,912,297 - 9912297
Total 186,330,207
Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities @ 30% 55,899,062

Deferred Tax recognized in OCI

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base  [Assets)/Liabilities
Investment Gain 127,290,426 - (127,290,426)
Acturial Gains - Gratuity - - -
Acturial Gains and Losses - Leave - - .
Total (127,290,426)
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30% (38,187,128)
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities) for FY 2074-75 17,711,934

Deferred Tax recognized in PL (2075-76)

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base Assets/[Liabilities)
Agent Commssion Expense - Deferred 15,688,671 - (15,688,671
RI Premium Expense - Deferred 472,026 - (472,026)
Rl Commission Income - Deferred 74,298,311 - 74,298,311
Unexpired Risk Reserve 295,098,103 295,098,103 -
Outstanding Claims and IBNR 347,800,369 322,327,693 25,472,676
Employee Benefits - Gratuity and Leave 86,103,365 - 86,103,365
Provision for Investment/Assets 7,713,899 - 7,713,899
Property, Plant and Equipment 81,991,993 72,094,292 (9.897,701)
Incentive 14,912,297 - 14,912,297
Rent Receivable 171,000 - (171,000}
Rent Payable 357,135 - 357,135
Total 182,628,285
Deferred Tax Assets/ Liabilities fd 30% 54,788,485
Deferred Tax Already In Books -
Total Deferred Tax 54,788,485

Deferred Tax recognized in OCI

Particulars Accounting Base Tax base (Assets)/Liabilities
Investrment Gain 81,008,164 - (81,008,164
Acturial Gains - Gratuity 1,389,922 - (1,389,922
Total (82,398,086)
Deferred Tax Assets/ (Liabilities) @ 30% 24,719,426)
Deferred Tax Already In Books -
Total Deferred Tax (24,719,426)
————Celessd sl e e s e T ST 30,069,060
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5.3 Financial Assets
5.3.1 Financial Investments Measured at Amortized Cost

Amountin NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Debentures of Banks and Financial Institutions 5 -
Fixed Depsoits in Commercial Banks 1,232,700,000 995,200,000
Fixed Depsoits in Developments Banks 238,300,000 196,000,000
Fixed Depsoits in Finance Companies 30,500,000 25,000,000
Accrued Income 13,882,268.44 9,305,274

Less: Provision for Losses in Investment -

Total 1,515,382,268

1,225,505,274

Interest accrued on fixed deposits are presented under financial investment measured at amortized cost as

on the reporting date.

5.3.2 Financial Investments at FVTOCI

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Ordinary Share- Public Companies 215,670,456.28 208,920,423
Nepal Reinsurance Company Limited 161,816,800 112,911,700
Preference Share/Debenture of Bank and Financial Institution 34,359,000 20,000,000
Investment in Mutual Funds 42,779,715.50 45,473,961
Provision for Losses of Investment =

Total 454,625,972 387,306,084

Financial Investments at FVOCI include investment in ordinary and promoters shares of different companies.
The movement in fair value of these instruments have been adjusted through Other Comprehensive Income

(OClI).

771t Annual Report 2075/076

41



Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Ordinary Share- Public Companies 2075/76 2074/75
Corporate Equity shares:
Quoted 215,670,456 208,920,423
Unquoted 161,816,800 112,911,700
Total 377,487,256 321,832,123
5.4 Deferred Expenses
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Agent Commission 15,688,671 10,597,954
RI Commissison Expense 472,026 526,464
Total 16,160,697 11,124,418

Deferred Expenses include agent commission and reinsurance commission expense deferred for next Fiscal
Year in proportion to the risk to be assumed in each policy in relation to policy period.
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5.5 Other Assets
Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Advance Payment 43,394,861 58,363,603
Advance to Employee B a9 257,896
Other Advances 4,608,017 13,427,684
Rent Receivable 171,000 -
Employees Loan 16,207,612 16,340,554
Prepaid Employee Benefits 11,904,388 16,558,946
Sundry Debtors 26,072,063 19,239,429
Deposits 2,337,188 2,243,229
Deposit in Citizen Investment Trust 20,613,859 18,573,851
Stock (Gald Coins) P29 20,122

Less: Provison for other assets (6,289,085 (1,494,798)
Total 119,617,503 143,530,516

Other Assets include advance made for various expenses, advance salaries to staff and other non refundable
advances. Prepaid employee benefits includes amount provided to staff as loan on concessional interest rate.

The provision for other assets includes provision on doubtful debt.

5.6 Reinsurance Assets

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Reinsurance Assets against URR 910,889,215 233,028,401
Reinsurance Assets against Outstanding Claims 413,146,055 551,103,446
Total 1,324,035,270 784,131,847

Reinsurance assets incuded unexpired risk reserve and outstanding claims pertaining to reinsurares,

5.7 Reinsurance Receivables

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Receivable from Local Insurance Company 62,636,835 58,377,307
Receivable from Reinsurance Company 296,799,324 327,370,476

|ess: Provision for Reinsurance debtors (22,149,146) (22,149 ,144)
Total 337,287,013 363,598,637

Reinsurance Receivable includes amount receivable from local insurance companies as well as international
reinsurers on account of normal business transaction. Confirmation from the Re-insurance companies under
Re-insurance treaty agreement has been received. The differences in the balance as confirmed by the local
insurance companies are identified with agreed reconciliation statement and the company is in the process of
resolving those differences through the mutual understanding with those insurance companies.
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5.8 Income Tax Receivable

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Advance Tax = 175,290,793
Provision for tax - (150,338,923
Total - 24,951,870
5.9 Cash and Cash Equivalent

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Cash 7,344,350 1,767,685
Commercial Banks 278,002,372 197,554,210
Development Banks 81,236,791 20,207,645
Financial Institutions 7,183,374 3,496,686
Cheque in hand 21,956,991 7,918,448

Less: Provison for balance in problematic finacial institution (1,424,815) (1,429,827
Total 394,299,064 229,514,848

Cash and Cash Equivalents include Cash at Vault and Bank deposit balances, which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.

Bank Balance includes balance in interest bearing deposit bank accounts. Fair value of cash and bank balance

is the carrying amount.

5.10 Share Capital

Particulars

2075/76

2074/75

Authorised capital
(20,000,000 no. of shares [@ NRs.100 per share)
Issued capital

(10,191,038 no. of shares [@ NRs.100 per share)

2,000,000,000

1,019,103,863

2,000,000,000

1,019,103,863

Paid up capital 1,019,103,863 617,638,705
(10,191,038 no. of shares @ NRs.100 per share)
Total 1,019,103,863 617,638,705

Shares are classified as equity when there is no obligation to transfer cash or other assets. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of equity instruments are charged to statement of profit or loss as the amount

is immaterial.
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited
5.11 Insurance Fund

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Fire 176,458,800 129,269,502
Marine 24,538,887 17,322,151
Motor 53,034,694 13,269,861
Engineering 5,450,155 5,450,155
Cattle and Crop 2,499,002 765,941
Miscellaneous 35,686,366 29,132,522
Aviation 334 334
Total 297,668,239 195,210,466

Insurance Fund are provided of 50% of the net profit as per Regulator’s Directive on net profit derived as per

Special Purpose Financial Statement.

5.12 Other Reserve and Retained Earnings

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Insurance Reserve 90,985,064 90,985,064
Fair Value Reserve 81,008,164 127,290,426
Deferred Tax Reserve 30,069,060 17,711,934
Accumulated profit 49,066,193 (24,966,597)
Bonus share pending to be capitalized 76,632,790 -
Acturial Remeasurement 1,389,922 2,717,659
Regulatory Reserve 6,133,185 -
Capital Reserve 144,325 144,325
Total 335,228,702 213,882,812

Fair Value reserves are unrealized gain on investment made which are measured at fair value.
Deferred Tax Reserve is created at the amount equal to deferred tax assets as per reulator’s guideline
Acturial remeasurements are acturial gains/ (losses) on acturial valuation of employee benefits.

5.13 Insurance Contract Liabilities

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75

Outstanding Claim Provision 693,431,005 833,626,712
Incurred but not reported 67515.418 103,818,353
Gross Unexpired risk reserve 1,205,987,319 477,325,227

Total

1,966,933,742 1,414,770,292

Insurance Contract Liabilties include provision for Unexpired
payables and provision for IBNR as valued by actuary.

Risk Reserve, Outstanding amount of claim
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited
5.13.1 Incurred but not Reported (IBNR) Amountin NPR

As per Insurance Board the liabilities of the insurance company shall be higher of the liabilities determined by
the actuary as per NFRS 4 or the liabilities as required by Regulatory Authority. Hence the liabilities has been
determined accordingly.

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
IBNR as per LAT Report (A] 67,515,418 103,818,353
15% provison created on Net Qutstanding Claim (B) 42,042,743 42,378,490
Higher of (A) and (B) 67,515,418 103,818,353

5.13.2 Gross Unexpired Risk Reserve

Unexpired Rik Reserve is the liabilities related with the gross premium income that is not related with current
Year and is deferred for next reporting period. It will be measured at higher of Actuary valuation as per LAT
report or as per regulatory requirement.

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per regulatory requirement (A 295,098,103 244,296,826
Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per LAT (B) 268,103,097 242,555,441
Higher of (A) and (B) 295,098,103 244,296,826

Net Unexpired Risk Reserve as per LAT is calculated by deducting reinsurance assets pertaining to Unexpired
Risk Reserve of respective year from Gross Unexpired Risk Reserve.

5.14 Employee Benefit Obligation

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Pension & Gratuity 70,801,738 78,544,915
Leave Encashment 15,301,626 13,637,097
Provision for Bonus 32,497,605 13,366,555
Total 118,600,970 105,548,567
Employee Benefit Obligation on account of Gratutity and Leave Encashment is valued by an independent
actuary.
5.15 Deferred Revenue

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Reinsurance Commission Income 74,298,311 45,977,596

Micro Insurance Premium Income - -

Total 74,298,311 45,977,596

Deferred revenue include Reinsurance Commission Income deferred for next Fiscal Year in proportion to the
risk to be assumed in each policy in relation to policy period.
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5.16 Reinsurance Payables

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Due to Other Insurance Company 1,023,059 1,460,525
Due to Other Reinsurance Company 222,469,537 441,875,715
Total 223,492,596 443,336,240

Reinsurance Payable includes amount payable to local insurance companies as well as international reinsurers
on account of normal business transaction.

5.17 Other Payable
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Payable to Agent 6,863,461 6,978,367
Employee Payable 6,888,435 -
Deposit Premium 46,953,810 36,503,727
Sundry Creditors 66,139,477 47,891,451
TDS Payable 5,889,797 6,402,253
VAT Payable 15,761,157 16,532,151
Income Tax Payable 2,405,315 -
Insurance Service Charge payable 11,070,353 8,683,840
Dividend Payable 13,439 1,350,439
Rent Payable 476,503 157,167
Total 162,461,748 124,499,393
5.18 Other Provision
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Other Employee provisions 14,912,297 9,912,297
Provison for Unreconciled Accounts 7,416 7,416
Total 14,919,713 9,919,713

Other Employee provisions are provisons created as per Company’'s Employee Bylaw for retirement benefit
plan. As per Company’'s Employee Bylaw an amount of NPR 5 million has been provisoned for Retirement
Benefit Plan in current year. The amount has been provisoned as per the profit derived from special purpose
financial statement. The amount will be paid to its employees at the time of retirement as per Company’s

Employee Bylaw.
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Section 6. Detailed Information on Statement of Profit or Losss

6.1 Net Premium

otal Net Premiums

541,280,116

447,898,129

6.1.1 Gross Premium

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Direct Premium 1,156,471,067 868,353,296
Facultative Inward Premiums 22,521,246 10,374,294
Total Gross Premiums 1,178,992,313 878,727,590
6.1.2 Premium Ceded to Reinsurers

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Premium ceded to Reinsurers (637,712,197) (430,829,461)
Total premiums ceded to reinsurers (637,712,197) (4£30,829,461)
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6.2 Fees and Commission Income

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Reinsurance Commission Income 151,901,215 105,415,383
Others - -
Total Commission Income 151,901,215 105,415,383

6.3 Investment Income

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Income from Government Securities and Securities guaranteed by : i
Government

Income from Fixed deposit of Commercial Bank 116,462,981 66,568,317
Income from Fixed deposit of Development Bank 24,089,636 19,514,503
Income from Fixed deposit of Financial Institutions 2,721,034 3,237,368
Dividend Income from the Shares of Public Company 835,476 -
Income from Debenture of Bank and Financial Institutions 1,600,000 1,600,000
Interest Income from Loan 157,214 235,620

Income from Other Investment
al Income from Share Issue - -

b] Miscellaneous Income - -

Income from Bank Deposit (Except Fixed Deposit) 7.432,693 5,805,685
Income Related to Previous Years = -
Income from Investments in Mutual Funds 532,107 2,067,480
Other Income 1,866,570 5,044,579
Total 155,697,711 104,073,551
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6.4 Net Realised Gains and Losses

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Property and Equipment
Gain on sale of assets - 575,718
Loss on sale of assets - -
Total net realised gains and losses - 575,718
Investment
Gain on sale of assets 5,804,616 -
Loss on sale of assets - (329,480)
Total net realised gains and losses 5,804,616 (329,480)
6.5 Other Income
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Written Back of Provision for Loss in Investments - -
Written Back of Provision for Doubtful Debt = -
Provision Written back - -
Other Income 15,394,168.71 -
Provision for Leave Encashment Written Back - 4,162,183
Provision for Investment in Problermmatic Financial Institutions Written Back - 419,159
Interest Income from Loans to Employees 1,234,861.64 1,342,656
Total Other Operating Income 16,629,030 5,923,998
6.6 Net Benefits and Claims
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
a. Gross benefits and claims paid - -
Claim Lodged This Year (311,454,645) (184,210,464
Claim Lodged in Prior Years (397,216,240) (240,628,813
Total gross benefits and claims paid (708,670,885) (424,839,276)
b. Claims ceded to reinsurer 479,800,438 233,111,337
Net benefits and claims (228,870,448) (191,727,940)
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6.7 Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
a. Change in Gross Insurance contract liabilities

Change in Insurance Contract Outstanding Claims Provision 161,225,062 (198,169,539)

Change in Charged for Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR] 35,967,187 (56,428,391)

Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve [URR] Provision (728,662,092) (102,717,565)
Total Change in Gross Insurance Contract Liabilities (531,469,842) (357,315,495)
b. Change in Reinsurance Assets

Change in Reinsurance Asset created on Outstanding Claim Provision (158,651,000 183,082,996

Change in Reinsurance Asset created on Unexpired Risk Reserve (URR) 677,860,814 29143,134.36
Total Net Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities 519,209,814 212,226,131
Net Change in Insurance Contract Liabilities (12,260,028) (145,089,364)
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited
6.8 Other Operating and Administrative Expenses

Amount in NPR

50

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Employee Expenses [Note 6.8.1] 197,337,532 128,193,246
Amortization of Prepaid Benefits - 1,342,656
House Rent 19,376,360 9,303,704
Electricity and Water 2,156,526 1,763,720
Repair and Maintenance

Building 58,072 22,115

Vehicle 1,061,805 993,010

Office Equipment and Accessories 988,977 693,715
Furniture 51,400 21,490
Communication Expenses 9,689,509 4,854,948
Printing and Stationary 6,351,261 3,565,211
Non Capitalized Expenses 1,141,077 921,493
Fuel and Conveyance 103,783 -
Travelling Expenses (Including Allowance]

Domestic 1,715,336 1,286,519

International 738,449 193,400
Agent Training = -
Other Agent - -
Insurance Expenses 1,106,597 644,617
Security Expenses 217,500 156,000
Legal and Consultancy 2,037,722 998,463
Books and Periodicals 1,005,590 761,883
Advertisement and Publicity 2,063,031 1,512,393
Business Promotion Expenses 4,562,631 3,914,426
Guest and Refreshment Expenses 1,199,685 965,731
Gifts and Donations 222,792 174,798
Board Meeting Fees and Expenses

Board Meeting Fee 1,577,100 936,725

Board Meeting Expenses 548,021 540,212
Committee Meeting Fees and Expenses

Committee Meeting Fees 938,125 667,925

Committee Meeting Expenses 483,993 771,708
Annual General Meeting Expenses = 537,086
Audit Related Fees

Audit Fees 425,000 330,000

Tax Audit Fees - -

Internal Audit Fees 350,000 350,000

Audit Related Expenses 1,400,009 -

Other Expenses - 684,686

DDA Fees - 290,000
Bank Charge 335,439 313,246
Membership and Renewal Charges 277,208 70,921
Depreciation Expenses 11,598,645 4,223,579
Stamp Ticket 1,078,145 552,078
Cleaning Expenses 390,185 337,434
Annual Event Expenses 374,404 225,726
Staff Refreshment and Puja Expenses 501,687 491,543
Other Expenses for Micro Insurance 709,507 242,700
Technical Service Related Expenses 595,000 609,000
Fuel Expenses 5.102,933 3,535,985
Miscellaneous Expenses = 256,317
New Branch Operation Expenses 272,595 457,777
Vehicle Tax 6,176,934 263,430
Other Expenses 619,670 __ 771392
Total 286,939,734 179,743,008
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6.8.1 Employee Benefit Expenses

Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Salary and Allowance 105,654,179 67,519,811
Provident Fund 5,724,319 3,792,487
Training Expenses 2,128,251 2,794,588
Pension and Gratuity Expenses 21,379,710 19,428,262
Leave Encashment 7,538,526 2,061,274
Provision for employee bonus 32 497.605 13,366,555
Uniform allowance 1,370,500 1,172,500
Dashain expenses 5,373,017 4,662,339
Medical allowance 7,264,137 6,703,078
Staff lunch expenses 2,017,512 1,614,894
Allowance for other benefits 5,000,000 5,000,000
Employee Benefit Expenses 1,234,862 -
Long term service expenses 150,003 57,460
Miscellaneous 4,909 19,997
Total 197,337,532 128,193,246

As per Company’'s Employee Bylaw an amount of NPR 5 million has been provisoned for Retirement Benefit
Plan. The amount has been provisoned as per the profit derived from special purpose financial statement. The
amount will be paid to its employees at the time of retirement as per Company’s Employee Bylaw.Company has
paid remuneration to various individuals for promotion of business through different counters and branches of
the company as per the decision of the Board of Directors and/or management depending on authority. Such

payments have been included in the head-salary and allowances.

6.9 Other Expenses

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Agent Commission 22,667,335 18,201,418
FAC In Commission Expenses 1,788,494 931,336
Beema Samiti Fees Expenses 5.412,801 4,478,981
Total 29,868,630 23,611,735
6.10 Provisions
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Provision for Other Assets 4,789,085 -
Provision for Investment in Problemmatic Financial Institutions 190 750
Total 4,789,275 750
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Amounti NPR
6.10.1 Share Related EXPEI‘ISES

Amount in NPR
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Share Registration Expense 699,003 1,210,357
Right Share Issue Expense 1,782,514 1,875,152
Total 2,481,517 3,085,509

Share issue expenditure is written off to profit and loss account in this financial year, as the amount is

immaterial.
6.11 Income Tax Expenses

Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Income Tax 87,562,904 45,399,175
Defferred Tax Assets/Liabilities 1,925,874 (11,062,160)
Total 89,488,778 34,337,015

6.12 Dividend Paid and Proposed
Particulars 2075/76 2074/75
Paid During the year
Stock Dividend for 74/75 - -
Stock Dividend for 74/75 - -
Cash Dividend for 74/75 - -
Cash Dividend for 74/75 - -
Total Dividend Paid in the year - -
Proposed for approval at AGM
Stock Dividend 54,776,833 76,432,790
Cash Dividend 31,712,903 -
Total Proposed Dividend 86,489,736 76,432,790

Company has proposed Bonus Share @ 5% and cash dividend @ 2.89% (inculding tax) on its" present share
capital of NPR 1,095 million amounting to NPR 86.49 million from its board meeting held on 2076.09.23.

52

71*t Annual Report 2075/076



6.13 Earning Per Share

Particulars 2075/76
Profit attributable to ordinary equity Holders 216,614,279
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares 7,276,292
Basic EPS 29.77

Weighted Average Number of Shares for Restatement =
Basic EPS Restated -

2074/75

85,961,979
6,453,408
13.32
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7. Disclosures and Additional Information
7.1 Risk Management

Amounti NPR

7.1.1 Insurance Risk

The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments or the timing thereof, may differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of
claims, severity of claims and actual benefits paid . Therefore, the objective of the Company is to ensure
that sufficient reserves are available to cover these liabilities.

The risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts and
geographical areas. The variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.

The Company Principally issues the following type of contracts: Fire Policies, Marine Policies, Motor
Policies, Engineering Polices, Micro Policies, Miscellaneous Policies, Cattle and Crop policies and
Aviation Policies. Risks under non life insurance contracts usually cover twelve month duration. The
most significant risk arise for non life insurance contract due to increase in accident rates, climate
changes, natural disasters and terrorist activities.

The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts
and geographical areas. The variability of risks is improved by careful selection and implementation of
underwriting strategies, which are designed to ensure that risks are diversified in terms of type of risk
and level of insured benefits. This is largely achieved through diversification across industry sectors
and geography. Furthermore, strict claim review policies to assess all new and ongoing claims, regular
detailed review of claims handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible fraudulent claims
are established to reduce the risk exposure of the Company.

The following tables show the concentration of non-life insurance contract liabilities by types of

contracts.
As at 16 July 2019 _
Amount in NPR
Particulars Outstanqing IBNR Reinsu'rarllc_e' of Net
Claims Liabilities
Fire 117,720,420 5,606,558 80,343,365.12 42,983,613
Marine 68,409,072 1,316,329 59,633,547.05 10,091,854
Motor 373,649,973 31,339,970 164,716,836.74 240,273,107
Engineering 90,060,206 1,272,564 81,576,447.89 9,756,322
Miscellaneous 24,566,366 619,418 20,636,912.44 4,748,872
Aviation - = - =
Cattle and Crop 19,024,968 1,887,903 6,438,945.30 14,473,926
Micro - = - -
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As at 16 July 2018

Amount in NPR

Outstanding

Reinsurance of

Particulars Claims IBNR Liabilities Net
Fire 253,436,159 24,714,118 210,631,385 67,518,891
Marine 42,919,971 4,435,472 36,708,832 10,646,611
Moator 343,592,956 60,291,798 129,688,277 274,196,477
Engineering 161,262,705 4,224,577 158,454,609 7,032,674
Miscellaneous 16,662,604 8,016,393 13,305,895 11,373,102
Aviation - = - =
Cattle and Crop 15,752,317 2,135 994 2,314,448 15,573,863

7.1.2 Financial Risk

The primary source of financial risk to an insurer arises from its investment exposures and investment
activities. Thus, the investment portfolios maintain a prudent approach in its investment strategy and
investment exposures to ensure that investment returns are optimised on a risk adjusted basis and to
ensure the Company operates within its defined risk appetite.

i Credit Risk

Credit risk refers to a risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the Company. Thus, for an insurance contract, credit risk includes the risk that an
insurer incurs a financial loss because a reinsurer defaults on its obligations under the reinsurance

contract

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group's exposure to credit risk:

a. The Company does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any
group of counterparties.

b. Reinsurance is placed with counterparties that have a good credit rating and concentration of risk is
avoided by entering into agreement with more than one party. At each reporting date, management
performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance purchase
strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

c.  The company deals with only creditworthy counterparties and abtains sufficient collateral where
appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Amount in NPR

Financial Investments at Neither past due Past due Past Past due and Carrying
amortized cost nor impaired less 90 Days 91 to 180 Days impaired amount
Fixed deposits 1,515,382,268 - - - 1,515,382,268
Corporate debentures 34,359,000 - - - 34,359,000
Loans to employees 16,207,612 - - - 16,207,612
Receivables from Re-insurers 337,287,013 - - - 337,287,013
Deposits 2,337,188 - - - 2,337,188
Trade receivables 26,072,063 - - - 26,072,063

Total

1,931,645,144

1,931,645,144
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Confirmation from the reinsurance companies for the treaty agreement has been obtained. The
differences in the balances as confirmed by the local insurance companies are identified with agreed
reconciliation statement and the company is in the process of resolving those differences through the
mutual understanding with those insurance companies. Hence, no impairment for the receivables from
the Re-insurers have been provided.

Liquidity Risk

The risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities
that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

Liquidity adequacy is a measure or assessment of the ability of a company to meet payment obligations
ina fulland timely manner within a defined time haorizon. Itis a function of its sources of liquidity relative
to its liquidity needs. Liquidity sources can be internal and external, available immediately or within the
defined time horizon, and includes all funds, assets and arrangements that allow an insurer to meet its
liquidity needs. Liquidity needs include all current and expected payment obligations within the defined
time horizon.

The following table depicts the maturity profile of the investment portfolio on a discounted cash flow
basis which is designed and managed to meet the required level of liquidity as and when liquidity outgo
arises taking into consideration the time horizon of the financial liabilities of the business.

As at 16 July 2019 Amountin NPR

Less th::al 1to 3 Years Mora t:::rg Total
Assets
Financial Investments at FVTOCI - - 454,625,972 454,625,972
Financial Investments at amortized cost 1,515,382,268 - - 1,515,382,268
Reinsurance contract assets 1,324,035,270 - = 1,324,035,270
Other Financial assets at amortized cost 44,616,863 - - 44,616,863
Cash and cash equivalents 394,299,064 - - 394,299,064
Total (A) 3,278,333,464 - 454,625,972  3,732,959,436
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities 1,966,933,742 - - 1,966,933,742
Other Financial liabilities at amortized cost 223,492,596 - - 223,492,596
Other liabilities 105,724,245 - - 105,724,245
Provisions and employee Liabilities - - 133,520,682 133,520,682
Total (B) 2,296,150,584 - 133,520,682 2,429,671,266
Net Asset/(liabilities) (A-B) 982,182,881 - 321,105,289 1,303,288,170

i Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange rates
(currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk] and market prices (price risk).
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a) Currency Risk

Foreign exchange risk is the potential for the Company to experience volatility in the value of its assets,
liabilities and solvency and to suffer actual financial losses as a result of changes in value between
the currencies of its assets and liabilities and its reporting currency. The Company does not maintain
foreign currency denominated assets in its investment portfolios and as such is not exposed to foreign
exchange risk related to investments.

The Company has no significant concentration of currency risk. The amount with reinsurer is settled in
Nepali Rupee.

b) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The major interest rate risk that the Company is exposed
to is the discount rate for determining insurance liabilities.

¢) Equity Price Risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in equity prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk],
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or by factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.

The Company's equity price risk exposure relates to financial investment held at FVTOCI, whose values
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

%age Impact on Other

Market indices -
change Comprehensive Income

Impact on equity

NEPSE 5% 9,045,756 9,045,756

NEPSE -5% (12,922,509) (12,922,509)
Note: Due to lack of information on Beta (correlation ] of NEPSE with the securities, it has been
considered 1.

7.2 Liability Adequacy Test

NFRS 4 requires the insurance company to determine their business liabilities using the actuaries.
A Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) was performed by an independent actuary as at 31 Ashad 2076, as
required by NFRS 4-Insurance Contracts in order to assess the adequacy of the carrying amount of
the provision for unexpired risk. The valuation is based on internationally accepted actuarial methods.
At each reporting date, the Company reviews its unexpired risk and a liability adequacy test is
performed to determine whether there is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. The calculation uses current estimates of future
contractual cash flows after taking account of the investment return expected to arise on
assets relating to the relevant non-life insurance technical provisions. If these estimates
show that the carrying amount of the unearned premiums is inadequate, the deficiency is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss by setting up a provision for liability adequacy.
Following are the assumption used by actuaries for the calculation of liabilities of the company as
required by NFRS 4.
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i. The accounting Policy for Liability testing Including the Frequency and Nature of Testing

NFRS 4 Accounting Policy document is a policy framewark which specifies the fundamental approach
of the company for implementation of the NFRS 4 in the background of regulatory specifications (of
Beema Samiti] for estimation of varicus liability provisions.

ii. The cash-flows Considered

Cash Flows considered and estimation are as follows:
Income side:

Premium
Reinsurance claims
Reinsurance commission

Outflow side:

Claims

Reinsurance premium
Commission for intermediation
Expenses

The current liability estimates are not based on present value of future cash flows, the portfolio size
being very small. Alternatives methods have been applied.

iii. Valuation Methods and Assumptions

For all one-year policies, except for Marine Cargo Open Caver Policies, the UPR is determined on 1/365"
basis, assuming the risk is uniform over the policy year.

For shorter than one-year Marine Cargo Policies, UPR is determined:

i. Using straight-line method over the policy term; or

ii. In the absence of date required for (i) above, using the last three months™ premium for the
relevant period of Implementing Regulations.

iv. The discounting Policy

No discounting has been used. The estimates of liability amount for non-life insurance contracts are
always carried out on non-discount basis fori liability terms being short and iil the Pricing [determination
of premium] is on non-discount basis.

v. Aggregation Practices
Principles of Aggregation

“When applying an existing accounting policy, the aggregation practice follows that practice already
established in that policy. When using an NAS 37 measure of the future cash flows, the test “shall
be made at the level of a portfolio of contracts that are subject to broadly similar risks and managed
together as a single portfolio."The portfolio of insurance contracts as at the reporting date is very small,
hence no aggregation has been considered.
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

7.2.1 Libility Adequacy Report Result

Net Unexpired Risk Reserve

Amount in NPR

Portfolios 2018 2019
Fire 76,422,429 72,905,761
Marine 12,929,012 11,050,499
Motor 137,180,992 167,220,251
Engineering 5,564,174 5,622,671
Miscellaneous 7,810,249 6,162,005
Cattle and Crop 2,648,586 4,779,734
Micro - 362,178
Total 242,555,441 268,103,097
Incurred but not Reported )
Amount in NPR
Portfolios 2018 2019
Fire 24,714,118 26,001,760
Marine 4,435,472 1.479,310
Motor 60,291,798 31,566,455
Engineering 4,224577 2,901,217
Miscellaneous 8,016,393 3,050,226
Cattle and Crop 2,135,994 2,352,203
Micro - 164,249
Total 103,818,353 67,515,418
Outstanding Claim as Per LAT )
Amount in NPR
Portfolios 2018 2019
Fire 253,436,159 117,720,419.88
Marine 42919971 68,409,072.27
Motor 343,592,956 373,649,973
Engineering 161,262,705 90,060,206.40
Miscellaneous 16,662,604 24,566,366.07
Aviation - -
Cattle and Crop 15,752,317 19,024,967.77
Total 833,626,712 693,431,005
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7.3 Capital Management

The focus of capital management is to maintain a strong capital base to support the business and
business growth, and to satisfy regulatory capital requirements at all times. In view of this the Company
has established the following objectives, policies and approach;

a. To maintain the required solvency level and to pay out its” liabilities on time

b. To allocate capital efficiently and support the growth of the business by ensuring that returns on
capital employed meets the requirements of business

c. To maintain financial strength to support new business growth and to satisfy the requirements of

the insured, regulators and stakeholders.
7.3.1 Regulatory Minimum Paid up Capital

Non-Life insurance companies were required by the Monetary Policy 2015/16 to attain a stipulated
minimum paid up capital of NPR 1 billion by Mid-July 2018. As on the reporting date, the company’s paid
up capitalis NPR 1,019.10 million.

7.3.2 Solvency Margin

The Company has Solvency Margin Ratio of 2.08 [Previous Year 2.17] computed in accordance with
Solvency Margin Directive, 2070.
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7.5 Related Parties Disclosure

7.5 Related Parties Disclosure

The Company identifies the following as the related parties under the requirements of NAS 24.

Name Relationship Remarks

Arjun Paudel Sharma Chairman

Laxman Paudel Director

Romal Krishna Shrestha Director

Diwakar Paudel Director

Bishnu Khetan Agrawal Director

Ram Hari Neupane Director

Bishnu Bahadur GC Director

Durga Prasad Nepal Former Director Held the position of director during the fiscal year
Shyam Sundar Kandel Former Director Held the position of director during the fiscal year
Sagar Singh Saud Former Director Held the position of director during the fiscal year
Vijaya Bahadur Shah, CEO Key Management Personnel

7.5.1 Board Member Allowances and Facilities

The Board of Directors have been paid meeting fees of NPR 1,577,100 during the fiscal year. Audit
Committee and other committees were paid meeting allowance of NPR 938,125 during the year.

7.5.2 Transactions with Related Parties

al Compensation to Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
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Short Other Termination Share Based
Term Long- Benefits Payment
S.N. Particular Employee  post Employment Benefits ~ term (if any)
Benefits Benefits
Gratuity  Leave Encashment
1 Vijaya Bahadur Shah 7,070,949
Total 7,070,969 ) ) } } ;

b) Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has earned gross premium of NPR 163,893,756 through transaction with Nepal Bank or
with the parties related with Nepal Bank Limited during the Fiscal Year

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

7.6 Details of Investment in Listed Shares and Mutual Fund Units

(Measured) of FVTOCI
Amount in NPR

Particulars 2075/76 - 2074/75 .

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
Investment in shares
Nepal Credit and Commerce Bank 104,881,050 187,937,360 56,872,000 188,579,795
Nabil Bank Ltd. 4,300,969 3,934,112 4,300,969 3,125,850
Nepal Investment Bank Ltd. 3,882,392 3,699,540 3,882,392 3,162,090
Sanima Bank Ltd. 1,984,463 2,018,400 1984463 1,620,000
Agricultural Development Bank Ltd. 6,515,573 7,821,716 6,515,573 5,665,188
Siddartha Bank Ltd. 2,178,750 2,070,180 2,178,750 1,650,000
Sunrise Bank Ltd. 5,895,850 5,704,000 5,895,850 5,117,500
Citizen Bank Ltd 2,327,000 2,482,368 -
Himalayan Urja Bikas Bank 2,000 2,780 -
Total 131,968,047 215,670,456 81,629,997 208,920,423
Investment inMutual Fund Units
Siddhartha Equity Oriented Scheme [SEQS) 5,897,740 6,381,355 5,897,740 6,222,116
NIBL Samriddhi Fund 8,889,471 8,051,153 8,889,471 8,824,968
Laxmi Value Fund 1 (LVF1) 4,824,170 4,920,653 4,824,170 4,944,774
Global IME Samunnat Scheme-1(GIMES1) 9,493,170 11955 277 9,493,170 8,325,510
NMB Hybrid Fund L-1 (NMBHF1) 1,577,400 1,582,132 1,577,400 1,528,501
Nabil Equity Fund (NEF) 1,689,740 1,576,527 1,689,740 1,666,084
NIBL Pragati Fund (NIBLPF) 3,424,800 2,548,057 3,424,800 3,082,320
Siddhartha Equity Fund 9,677,470 9,764,567 9,677,470 9,251,661
Total 45,473,961 42,779,716 45,473,961 43,845,934
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Contingent liabilities and Commitments ( to the Extent not Provided for)

7.8 Contingent liabilities and Commitments ( to the Extent not Provided for)

i The Company does not have any capital commitment or investment commitments.

il The Company doesn’t have any claimed lodged against it except for the claims related with

insurance policies.

iii. The Company hasn't provided guarantees of any type to other parties.

7.8.1 Large tax Payer’s Office had made tax assessment for fiscal year 2060/61, 2061/61 and 2062/63 of the
company. Against the assessment made the company had filed case against it in Revenue Tribunal. On
2066/10/24, decision was made in company's favor, against the judgment of Revenue Tribunal, Large
Tax Payer’s Office has filed case in Supreme Court which is yet to be settled. The details of the amount

are given in table below:

Fiscal year

Amount [NPR)

2060/61
2061/62
2062/63

Total

7.8.2 Company has following legal cases pending with claimants for review of claim assessed by the company

Party

Amount [NPR)

Bharati Devi Sharma
Shalikram Adhikari

Total

64
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Nepal Insurance Company Limited
8. Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions

8.1 Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Positions Reported as at 16 July 2019 Due to

Adaptation of NFRS .
Amount in NPR

Particulars EXP;?):::‘OW Re_c"as;'::g Adjustments NFRS
Assets

Property, Plant and Equipment 80,897,868 - 80,897,868
Intangible Assets 1,094,125 - 1,094,125
Deferred Tax Assets a 34,539,463 (4,470,403 30,069,060
Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 1,515,382,268 - 1,515,382,248
Financial Investments at FVTQOCI b 369,401,506 85,224,466 454,625,972
Financial Investments at FVPL - - =
Deferred Expenses C - 16,160,697 16,160,697
Other Assets i 106,584,538 13,032,965 119,617,503
Reinsurance Assets d - 1,324,035,270 1,324,035,270
Reinsurance Receivables 337,287,013 - 337,287,013
Income tax receivable (2,405,315) 2,405,315 -
Cash and Cash Equivalent 395,077,650 (778,586) 394,299,064
Total Assets 2,837,859,117 1,433,088,810 4,273,258,296
Equity

Share capital 1,019,103,863 - 1,019,103,863
Share premium 38,479,349 - 38,479,349
Insurance Fund 297,668,239 - 297,668,239
Catastrophe Reserve 22,281,608 - 22,281,608
Other Reserves 326,187,683 9,041,019 335,228,702
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 1,703,720,741 9,041,019 1,712,761,761
Liabilities

Deferred Tax Liability - - -
Insurance contract liabilities - 617,425,797 1,349,507,945 1,966,933,742
Employee benefit obligation 118,600,971 - 118,600,970
Deferred revenue f - 74,298,311 74,298,311
Reinsurance payables 223,492,596 - 223,492,596
Other payables 159,699,298 2,762,449 162,461,748
Other Provisions g T 919703 - 14919713
Total liabilities 1,134,138,375 1,426,568,705 2,560,707,078
Total ordinary shareholders’ equity 2,837,859,117 1,435,609,725 4,273,468,840
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

8.2 Reconciliation of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 16 July 2019 due to Adoption

of NFRS
Amount in NPR
Particulars Explanatory GAAP Adjustments NFRS
Notes

Gross Premium 1,178,992.313 - 1,178,992,313
Premium ceded to reinsurers (637,712,197) - [637.712,197)
Net Premium 541,280,115 - 541,280,115
Fees and commission income f 180,221,930 (28,320,715) 151,901,215
Investment income 88,6977 1d - 155,697,711
Net realised gains and losses 5,804,616 - 5,804,616
Fair value gains and losses = - =
Other income h 25,125,070 (8,496,040 16,629,030
Total revenue 908,129,443  (36,816,755) 871,312,688
Gross benefits and claims paid (708,670,885) - [708,670,885]
Claims ceded to reinsurers 479,800,438 - 479,800,438
Net benefits and claims (228,870,448) - [228,870,448)
Net change in insurance contract liabilities e (48,227,215) 35,967,187 (12,260,028
Other operating and administrative expenses h (286,775,768) (163,966 (286,939,734
Other expenses c (34,904,909 5,036,279 (29.,868,630)
Provision Expenses g (16,872,654) 12,083,380 [4,789,275)
Share Related Expenses (2,481,517 - (2.481,517)
Total benefits, claims and other expenses (615,650,995) 52,922,881 (565,209,631)
Profit before tax 292,478,448 - 306,103,057
Income Tax Expenses a (81,997.354) (7,491,424) (89,488,778)
Profit for the year 210,481,094 8,614,702 216,614,279
Other comprehensive income

Net gain on revaluation of Financial Assets at fair value - (46,282,262 (46,282,262
Actuarial Gains/(Losses) on Defined Benefit Plan - (1,327,737 (12327 737
Income tax relating to above items = 14,283,000 14,283,000
Total comprehensive income for the year 210,481,094  (24,712,298) 183,287,280
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Nepal Insurance Company Limited

Nepal Insurance Company Limited

8.3 Reconciliation of Statement Cash Flow for the Year Ended 16 July 2019

Amount in NPR

For the Year Ended 16 July 2019

. . Effgc_t 2 Amount as per

Particulars Previous GAAP transition to NERS
NFRS

Assets
Net Cash Flows from operating activities 7,109,899 122,310,986 129,420,885
Net Cash Flows from investing activities (336,252,133 (68,329,043) (404,581,176)
Net Cash Flows from financing activities 439,944,507 - 439,944,507
Net increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalent 110,802,272 53,981,944 164,784,216
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 126,486,296 103,028,551 229 514,847
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period 237,288,568 157,010,495 394,299,064

Notes on Cash Flow Statement

Thereisnoanycashinflowdue to NFRS. However, major adjustments are observed mainly due to reclassification
of call deposits from investment in Local GAAP to cash and cash equivalent in NFRS financials. Also, Interest
Income and other realized gain on disposal of assets is classified as operating Income in case of NFRS causing
the difference in classification.

Notes to Reconciliation of GAAP FS and NFRS Complied FS:

a.

Deferred tax assets and Liabilities are created on all the adjustments made for converging the
financials into NFRS Compliant.

FVTOCI are valued at the fair value [mark to market) as on Asadh End and the unrealized gain is
also routed through OCI.

Under Previous GAAP, agent commission expenses and Reinsurance commission expense
were accounted on cash basis. Under NFRS, these expenses are reported on accrual basis in
proportion to the policy period using 1/365" method.

Under previous GAAP, reinsurance assets related to Unexpired Risk reserve and Outstanding
Claims were presented on Net Basis by setting off against respective assets. Under NFRS, these
assets are presented in Gross Basis.

Insurance Contract Liabilities under previous GAAP were presented on Net basis. Under NFRS
it is presented in Gross basis by separately disclosing Provisions for Outstanding Claims, IBNR
and Unexpired Risk Reserve.

Under Previous GAAP, Reinsurance Commission Income was accounted on cash basis. Under
NFRS, reinsurance income are reported on accrual basis in proportion te the policy period using
1/365" method.

Under previous GAAP, bonus share and cash dividend were charged to retained earning for the year
which it has been declared. Under NFRS, provision for cash dividend and Bonus Shares has been
reversed and disclosed in notes only and charged in the year on which it has been passed by AGM.
Loans provided to staff at concessional rate are booked as interest income on loan to employees
as well as equal amount is charged as amortization of prepaid benefit to staff.

Provision provided on premium not realized within 7 days under previous GAAP has been reversed
under NFRS being cash realized subsequently.
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